
July 11, 2019 Minutes >>                    July 19, 2019 Minutes >>

Summary >>               Materials >>

Summary >>               Materials >>

Summary >>               Materials >>

Summary >>               Materials >>

Summary >>               Materials >>



Summary >>               Materials >>

Summary >>               Materials >>

Summary >>               Materials >>

Summary >>

Summary >>               Materials >>

Summary >>               Materials >>

Summary >>               Materials >>





Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Council Meeting Minutes July 11, 2019                Page 1 of 8 

 CITY OF ALTOONA, WI 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

July 11,  2019 

(I) Call Meeting to Order 

Mayor Brendan Pratt called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. held in the Council Chambers at Altoona 

City Hall. 

(II) Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor Pratt led the Common Council and others in attendance in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

(III) Roll Call    

City Clerk Cindy Bauer called the roll.  Mayor Brendan Pratt, Council Members Dale Stuber, Red 

Hanks, Andrew Schlafer, Matthew Biren, Tim Sexton, and Susan Rowe were present.  Also Present:  Attorney 

Christopher Gierhart, City Administrator Michael Golat, Finance Director Tina Nelson, City Planner Joshua 

Clements, Management Analyst Roy Atkinson, and City Clerk Cindy Bauer.  City Engineer/Director of Public 

Works (CE/DPW) David Walter arrived at 7:13 p.m. 

(IV) Citizen Participation Period  

Motion by Biren/Sexton to close the Citizen Participation Period.  Motion carried. 

(V) Approval of minutes. 

Motion by Hanks/Sexton to approve the minutes of the June 27, 2019 Regular Council Meeting.  

Motion carried. 

(VI) City Officers/Department Heads Report  

City Administrator Golat mentioned that the stream is down for maintenance at River Prairie Park and 

should be working next week.   

Golat mentioned that plans are underway for the Big Boy Locomotive visit on July 23, 2019.   Watch the 

City’s website for more information. 

City Committee Reports – None. 

(VII) Unfinished Business – none. 

(VIII) New Business 

(1)  Quarterly Tourism Report presented by Visit Eau Claire. 
City Administrator Golat explained that Visit Eau Claire is Altoona’s contracted tourism promotion 

agency.  In order to detail tourism marketing efforts in Altoona, Visit Eau Claire will continue providing quarterly 

updates to the council. 

Linda John, Executive Director of Visit Eau Claire, was present at the meeting to discuss tourism market-

ing in Altoona and upcoming events occurring in the Chippewa Valley Area.  Jason Krueger, Sports Sales Manager 

and Kenzi Havlicek of Visit Eau Claire were also present to answer any questions regarding tourism promotion 

and marketing.   

(VIII)(2)  Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as is possible to rezone parcel #201-2090-05-000 

at 711 Fairfax Street from C Commercial District to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District as submitted by 

Frank Lechner. 
Mayor Pratt opened the public hearing at 6:11 p.m. 

Agenda >>



Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Council Meeting Minutes July 11, 2019                                                Page 2 of 8 
 
 

City Planner Clements explained that the petitioner has submitted a petition to rezone the property at 711 

Fairfax from C Commercial to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District. The most recent use for the property was a 

car wash. The petitioner is seeking to rezone in order to enable renovation and adding a second story to accom-

modate 8 dwelling units.  Staff recommended that the Council approve the appeal for zoning with conditions.   

 Frank Lechner, applicant, was present to answer any questions Council Members had regarding his  

request for Rezoning the proposed property.   

 City Administrator Golat commented that the rezoning of this property could be conceived as spot zon-

ing.  Golat suggested reviewing some of the other corridors such as Spooner Avenue and Fairfax Street and look 

at possibly changing some of the current zoning to allow this type of use along the corridors.    

Motion by Sexton/Rowe to close the public hearing at 6:17 p.m.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(3) Discuss/consider approval of Ordinance 7A-19, an ordinance to rezone parcel #201-2090-05-000 

from C Commercial District to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District as submitted by Frank Lechner. 
City Planner Clements noted that the Plan Commission disapproved the rezoning request.  Plan  

Commission Members felt it was more of a spot zoning, whereas no other R-3 zoning in the immediate area.  Plan 

Commission and Council Member Matt Biren explained the reasoning why he voted for approval.  Plan  

Commission and Council Member Andrew Schlafer explained the reasoning why he voted against the rezoning.     

 City Administrator Golat reiterated looking over some of the other corridors such as Fairfax Street and 

Spooner Avenue and look at changing some zoning to allow this type of use along the corridors.   

Motion by Sexton/Biren to disapprove the rezoning for parcel #201-2090-05-000 from C to R3 and direct 

staff to come up with a proposed rezoning plan for this corridor to allow for a more specified use.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(4)  Public Hearing at 6:05 p.m. or as soon thereafter as is possible to rezone Lot 1 of CSM #3470 V19 

P284 located at the corner of Fairway Drive and N. Willson Drive from R-1 One-Family Dwelling District 

(Temporary Designation) to RP River Prairie Mixed Use District, and Outlot 1 of that CSM from R-1 to P 

Public and Conservancy as submitted by the City of Altoona. 
 Mayor Pratt opened the public hearing at 6:33 p.m. 

City Planner Clements explained that the identified Lot 1 and Outlot 1 of CSM 3470, of the CSM approved 

by the City Council on May 23, was recently acquired from the WI DOT. Previously, the property was DOT right-

of-way, and as such, did not have a zoning classification. Pursuant to Altoona Municipal Code 19.24.030, lands 

incorporated into the City shall be subject to R-1 zoning until such time the property is rezoned, within 120 days. 

While the lands were not incorporated into the City through purchase, Zoning Administrator Clements regards this 

rezoning action as the applicable procedure.  Lot 1 is intended to be marketed for development. The Zoning  

Administrator recommended the Plan Commission and Council assign RP River Prairie Mixed Use District as the 

applicable zoning to allow for commercial, residential, and mixed-use development and to follow the River Prairie 

Design Guidelines and Standards. The parcel is approximately 1.62 acres.  The recommended zoning for Outlot 1 

is P Public and Conservancy, as the Outlot is currently utilized as a stormwater pond. The Outlot is approximately 

0.90 acres. 

Motion by Schlafer/Sexton to close the public hearing at 6:35 p.m.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(5)  Discuss/consider approval of Ordinance 7B-19, an ordinance to rezone Lot 1 of CSM #3470 V19 

P284 located at the corner of Fairway Drive and N. Willson Drive from R-1 One-Family Dwelling District 

(Temporary Designation) to RP River Prairie Mixed Use District, and Outlot 1 of that CSM from R-1 to P 

Public and Conservancy as submitted by the City of Altoona. 
Motion by Sexton/Stuber to approve the rezoning for Lot 1 of CSM #3470 V19 P284 from R-1 to River 

Prairie Mixed Use and Outlot 1 from R-1 to P Public and Conservancy.  Motion carried. 

 



Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Council Meeting Minutes July 11, 2019                                                Page 3 of 8 
 
 

(VIII)(6)  Public Hearing at 6:10 p.m. or as soon thereafter as is possible to consider Ordinance 7C-19 to 

amend Title 19 of the Altoona Municipal Code “Zoning” specifically to amend Chapter 19.61 regarding 

Short Term Rentals. 
 Mayor Pratt opened the public hearing at 6:36 p.m. 

 City Planner Clements explained that the Plan Commission discussed the emerging issue of Short-term 

rentals during the June 10th meeting and directed staff to propose an ordinance amendment. Short-term rentals 

(STR) are defined as rental of dwelling units for less than 29 days, but not located in a property defined and  

permitted as a hotel, motel, or bed-and-breakfast establishment.  Per State Statues, STRs are required to acquire a 

State license from the County Health Department as well as sellers permit from the Department of Revenue.  

However, local zoning is silent on this use and, based upon case law, may be permitted.  

 

Summary of the proposed modifications to Chapter 19.61: 

·         Articulate Purpose and Definitions. 

·         Create “Short Term Rental Permit”, administrative and enforcement procedures 

·         Refer to existing State permit and license requirements 

·         Create Specific Standards 

o   Rentals less than 7 days must occur at an owner-occupied property 

o   Create minimum parking, maximum occupancy 

o   Require posting of City permit 

o   Require creation and posting of an Operational Notice, including quiet hours, burning regulations, and other 

similar notices. 

 Linda John, Visit Eau Claire, commented on Airbnb facilities in Eau Claire County. 

 Motion by Sexton/Rowe to close the public hearing at 6:53 p.m.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(7)  Discuss/consider approval of Ordinance 7C-19, an ordinance amending Chapter 19.61 of the  

Altoona Municipal Code “Accessory Buildings and Uses” regarding short term rentals.   

City Planner Clements explained that the Fee Schedule is proposed to be amended by a separate action to 

refer to the Short Term Rental Permit so created by this Ordinance. The Plan Commission recommended approval 

of Ordinance 7C-19.  Staff will follow-up with preparation of the appropriate permit application and associated 

materials. 

Motion by Sexton/Rowe to approve Ordinance 7C-19 amending Title 19 more specifically Chapter 19.61 

“Accessory Buildings and Uses” regarding Short Term Rentals.  Hanks against.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(8) Public Hearing at 6:10 p.m. or as soon thereafter as is possible to consider Ordinance 7D-19 to 

amend Title 19 of the Altoona Municipal Code “Zoning” specifically to amend Chapter 19.28, and Chapter 

19.56 regarding setbacks. 

Mayor Pratt opened the public hearing at 6:56 p.m. 

 City Planner Clements explained that Chapter 19.28 and Chapter 19.56 were amended by the City Council, 

upon recommendation by the Plan Commission, in December 2017 regarding building setbacks. Included among 

those provisions was the requirement that garages be set back from the principal façade of the dwelling as noted 

in Chapter 19.28. The Plan Commission discussed this provision at the 2019 May 13th meeting and directed staff 

to remove the requirement.  The proposed ordinance language modifying Chapter 19.28, specifically Section 

19.28.030 “Yard requirements” removes the requirement and reframes the provision as an encouragement without 

regulatory effect. 

 City Planner Clements said there is also a provision in 19.56 “Yards, Lot Areas and Open Spaces” 

concerning the garage setback provision; that item is also struck.  While modifying that Section of 19.56, staff 

proposed a further modification to improve developability of small parcels and corner lots. There is a provision 

that allows for comparison of a property to those along the same frontage, and if there are non-conforming setbacks 



Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Council Meeting Minutes July 11, 2019                                                Page 4 of 8 
 
 

that pre-exist, new development or additions would be may be permitted with alternative setbacks:  The existing 

alternative setback distance of 15 feet is not significantly different than the standard 16. This renders this provision 

not meaningful in terms of improving development in existing neighbors that have non-conforming setbacks. Staff 

proposes modification to ten feet. This is not expected to impact public infrastructure or other interests within the 

public right-of-way. Minimum garage setback from the right-of-way would remain 24 feet to allow for a vehicle 

to park within the driveway.  City Planner Clements noted that the purpose of this recommendation is that there 

are many areas of the City where the predominant existing homes were constructed prior to 1970, and for which 

setbacks are commonly less than 15 feet. This modification may improve developability of existing and small lots 

in existing neighborhoods. 

Motion by Sexton/Biren to close the public hearing at 6:59 p.m.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(9) Discuss/consider approval of Ordinance 7D-19, an ordinance amending Chapter 19.28 “R-1 One 

Family Dwelling Districts” specifically Section 19.28.030 “Yard Requirements; and amending Chapter 

19.56 “Yards, Lot Areas and Open Spaces” specifically Section 19.56.045 “Nonconforming Setbacks” re-

garding garage setbacks.   

Motion by Sexton/Biren to approve Ordinance 7D-19 amending Title 19 more specifically Chapter 19.28 

and 19.56 regarding setbacks.  Hanks against.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(10)  Discuss/consider approval of Final Implementation Plan for Creekside at Hillcrest Greens  

This item was asked to be moved to the July 25, 2019 Council Meeting.  No action.     

 

(VIII)(11)  Public Hearing at 6:15 p.m. or as soon thereafter as is possible regarding a Certified Survey Map 

(CSM) to reconfigure three parcels:  #201-2378-10-020, #201-2378-06-000, and #201-2378-01-020 on Saw-

grass Place in the Hillcrest Greens Planned Community Development as requested by Rooney Properties. 

 Mayor Pratt opened the public hearing at 7:02 p.m. 

 City Planner Clements explained that the proposed CSM reconfigures three existing parcels, two lots and 

an outlot, into two lots and an outlot to facilitate the development of the Creekside at Hillcrest Greens.  Clements 

noted that one of the modifications the petitioner is seeking is the existing easement that currently is 15 feet.  The 

proposed easement will be modified to 20 feet.  The public hearing took place but action will not be declared until 

the July 25, 2019 Council Meeting. 

Motion by Sexton/Rowe to close the public hearing at 7:06 p.m.  Motino carried. 

 

(VIII)(12)  Discuss/consider approval of Certified Survey Map to reconfigure three parcels:  #201-2378-10-

020, #201-2378-06-000, and #201-2378-01-020 on Sawgrass Place in the Hillcrest Greens Planned  

Community Development as requested by Capital Investment Partners, LLC.   

This item was asked to be moved to the July 25, 2019 Council Meeting.  Action on this item will be 

declared at the July 25, 2019 Council Meeting at the request of the petitioner.   

 

(VIII)(13)  Public Hearing at 6:20 p.m. or as soon thereafter as is possible regarding a Certified Survey Map 

(CSM) to reconfigure four parcels:  Lots 15, 16, 23 and Outlot 3 in River Prairie Northwest Quadrant as 

requested by River Flats, LLC. 

Mayor Pratt opened the public hearing at 7:07 p.m. 

City Planner Clements explained that the proposed CSM accomplishes lot combination and resizing for 

River Flats.  Clements noted that the SIP was approved by the City Council on December 20, 2018. The CSM 

enlarges the parcels consistent with the land purchase agreement. The CSM also adds “Access Note” that Outlot 

1 is to provide egress to Lot 1. 

Motion by Sexton/Biren to close the Public Hearing at 7:10 p.m.  Motion carried. 



Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Council Meeting Minutes July 11, 2019                                                Page 5 of 8 
 
 

 

(VIII)(14)  Discuss/consider approval of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to reconfigure four parcels:  Lots 

15, 16, 23 and Outlot 3 in River Prairie Northwest Quadrant as requested by River Flats, LLC. 

Motion by Sexton/Biren to approve the proposed CSM.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(15)  Public Hearing at 6:25 p.m. or as soon thereafter as is possible to rezone parcel #201-1006-07-

150 from C Commercial District to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District, located east at the corner of 

Fairfax Street and Spooner Avenue as requested by Lee Haremza. 

Mayor Pratt opened the public hearing at 7:11 p.m. 

City Planner Clements explained that the subject parcel is approximately 0.990 acres and is located 

immediately east of the CCF Bank located at the corner of Fairfax Street and Spooner Avenue. The parcel has joint 

access from an existing private drive shared by the Bank and other parcels.  The applicant, Lee Haremza, has 

submitted an offer to purchase contingent upon rezoning. Mr. Haremza proposes to construct a two-story multi-

family building containing approximately 20 dwelling units. The conceptual site layout shows 34 automobile 

parking spaces.  Adjoining uses to the east and south are residential multi-family. Uses to the west and north are 

commercial.  City Planner Clements noted that if approved, the petitioner must complete successful Site Plan 

review prior to commencing development activities. 

Ann Pehler, President of the Otter Creek Condo Association was present to ask questions regarding  how 

close the proposed  Multiple Family Dwelling District will be to their property line.   

Motion by Sexton/Biren to close the public hearing at 7:16 p.m.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(16) Discuss/consider approval of Ordinance 7E-19, an ordinance to rezone parcel #201-1006-07-150 

from C Commercial District to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District, located east at the corner of Fairfax 

Street and Spooner Avenue as requested by Lee Haremza. 

Motion by Sexton/Stuber to approve Ordinance 7E-19 to rezone parcel #201-1006-07-150 from C to R-3.  

Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(17)  Discuss/consider approval of the Final Plat for Hillcrest Greens IV in the Hillcrest Greens II 

Planned Community Development as submitted by Sean Bohan on behalf of C&M Home Builders.   

 City Planner Clements explained the Final Plat for territory known as “Hillcrest Greens IV”. The Final 

Implementation Plan for the development (“Hillcrest Greens II”) was approved by the City Council on May 23, 

2019. City Staff has confirmed that the Plat is consistent with the approved Final Implementation Plan. 

  Motion by Sexton/Biren to approve the Final Plat for Hillcrest Greens IV.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(18)  Discuss/consider approval of Development Agreement between the City of Altoona and Lee   

Haremza for “Ry Estates”. 

City Planner Clements explained the Development Agreement between the City of Altoona and Lee 

Haremza for ‘Ry Estates”. The Site Plan was approved on 2019 March 11. The agreement sets forth conditions of 

installation of public infrastructure along with special conditions. The agreement also provides a surety for the 

improvements in the form of a letter of credit and includes the construction plans as an attachment.  The 

development agreement will include a letter of credit that will be obtained and attached to the Development 

Agreement. Values were not available at the time of material publication. 

 Motion by Rowe/Sexton to approve a Development Agreement between the City and Lee Haremza for Ry 

Estates.  Motion carried. 

 

 

 



Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Council Meeting Minutes July 11, 2019                                                Page 6 of 8 
 
 

(VIII)(19)  Discuss/consider approval of Development Agreement between the City of Altoona, Hoss Bros, 

LLC., and Hillcrest Self Storage, LLC, for “Harvest Ridge Apartments”.   

 City Planner Clements explained the Development Agreement between the City of Altoona, Hoss Bros, 

LLC., (Jason Griepentrog), and Hillcrest Self Storage, LLC (Anthony Brown) for “Harvest Ridge Apartments”. 

The Site Plan for this development was approved on 2019 June 10th. The agreement sets forth conditions of 

installation of public infrastructure along with special conditions. The development includes frontage along a road 

shown on the City’s Official Map (N. Hillcrest Parkway). The agreement allows the adjoining property owners to 

delay construction of the road in exchange for financial liability at such time the roadway is constructed by the 

City. 

 Motion by Rowe/Sexton to approve a Development Agreement between the City, Hoss Bros., LLC., and 

Hillcrest Self Storage, LLC.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(20)  Discuss/consider approval of Development Agreement between the City of Altoona and River 

Flats, LLC for “River Flats”.   

 City Planner Clements explained the Development Agreement between the City of Altoona and River 

Flats, LLC (Mark Held). The agreement sets forth conditions of extension of public utilities into the site, 

landscaping and stormwater encroachment into City property, and perpetual maintenance of adjacent walkways 

by the developer. 

Motion by Sexton/Rowe to approve a Development Agreement between the City and River Flats, LLC.  

Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(21)  Discuss/consider approval of Ordinance 7F-19, an Ordinance amending Chapter 3.08,  

Addendum “A”, the City’s Fee Schedule to establish new entry for Short Term Rental Permits.   

City Planner Clements explained that this entry to the Schedule of Fees establishes a $150 application and 

$100 renewal fee related to Short Term Rental Permits, duly created with the adoption of Ordinance 7D-19. 

   Motion by Sexton/Rowe to approve Ordinance 7F-19 amending Chapter 3.08 Addendum “A” establishing 

fee schedule for short term rental permits. Hanks against.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(22)  Discuss/consider approval of Resolution 7A-19, a Preliminary Resolution of the Common  

Council of the City of Altoona, declaring intent to exercise its police powers pursuant to Section 66.0703 of 

Wisconsin Statutes to specially assess for the Bartlett Avenue/CTH KB Reconstruction-Phase 2 project. 

CE/DPW Walter explained Resolution 7A-19, a preliminary resolution of the Common Council of the 

City of Altoona, declaring intent to exercise its police powers pursuant to Section 66.0703 of Wisconsin Statutes 

to specially assess for the Bartlett Avenue/CTH KB Reconstruction-Phase 2 project.  Walter said the scope of the 

project includes reconstruction of Bartlett Avenue/CTH KB from Walden Court easterly to the City Limits.  

CE/DPW Walter noted that the scope of the project ends to the City Limits not the overpass as originally listed.                  

Items included in the project consist of grading, gravel, asphaltic concrete paving, concrete curb and gutter, multi-

use trail, sanitary sewer and appurtenances, water main and appurtenances, storm sewer, and lawn restoration.  As 

in the past, Altoona has used the special assessment process to fund a portion of the project.  The first step in the 

special assessment process is for the Council to pass the preliminary resolution declaring intent to exercise its 

police powers pursuant to section 66.0703 of Wisconsin Statutes and setting the date of the public hearing on the 

assessment for July 25, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. (or as soon thereafter as is practical).   The preliminary resolution also 

directs City staff to prepare a Preliminary Assessment Report, which includes a schedule of the proposed 

assessments.  Once completed, the report will be placed on file at City Hall for public inspection. 

Motion by Rowe/Biren to approve Resolution 7A-19, a preliminary resolution of the Common Council of 

the City of Altoona, declaring intent to exercise its police powers pursuant to Section 66.0703 of Wisconsin 

Statutes to specially assess for the 2019 Bartlett Avenue Reconstruction project and set the date for public hearing 

at 6:00 p.m. on July 25, 2019.  Hanks against.  Motion carried. 



Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Council Meeting Minutes July 11, 2019                                                Page 7 of 8 
 
 

 

(VIII)(23)  Discuss/consider approval of Resolution 7B-19, a Preliminary Resolution of the Common  

Council of the City of Altoona, declaring intent to exercise its police powers pursuant to Section 66.0703 of 

Wisconsin Statutes to specially assess for the 2019 Hayden’s Addition Reconstruction project. 

CE/DPW Walter explained Resolution 7B-19, a preliminary resolution of the Common Council of the City 

of Altoona, declaring intent to exercise its police powers pursuant to Section 66.0703 of Wisconsin Statutes to 

specially assess for the 2019 Hayden’s Addition Reconstruction project.  The scope of the project includes 

reconstruction of the following street segments. 

1. Hayden Avenue, from 3rd Street East to approximately 479 feet east.                 

2. Garfield Avenue, from 3rd Street East to the easterly end of Garfield Avenue. 

3. 4th Street East, from Daniels Avenue to Hayden Avenue. 

CE/DPW Walter said items included in the project consist of grading, gravel, asphaltic concrete paving, 

concrete curb and gutter, sidewalk, sanitary sewer and appurtenances, water main and appurtenances, storm sewer, 

and lawn restoration.  As in the past, Altoona has used the special assessment process to fund a portion of the 

project.  The first step in the special assessment process is for the Council to pass the preliminary resolution 

declaring intent to exercise its police powers pursuant to section 66.0703 of Wisconsin Statutes and setting the 

date of the public hearing on the assessment for July 25, 2019 at 6:05 p.m..   The preliminary resolution also directs 

City staff to prepare a Preliminary Assessment Report, which includes a schedule of the proposed assessments.  

Once completed, the report will be placed on file at City Hall for public inspection. 

Motion by Biren/Sexton to approve Resolution 7B-19, a preliminary resolution of the Common Council 

of the City of Altoona, declaring intent to exercise its police powers pursuant to Section 66.0703 of Wisconsin 

Statutes to specially assess for the 2019 Hayden’s Addition Reconstruction project and set the date for public 

hearing at 6:05 p.m. on July 25, 2019.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(26)  Discuss/consider approval of Bartender Licenses for the 2019-2020 licensing period as submitted 

by Clerk Bauer.   

City Clerk Bauer explained that the City has received renewal and new bartender license applications for 

the licensing period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 .  A report was prepared and distributed to Council 

with a recommendation by Police Chief Bakken for approval of all applicants submitted.  

Motion by Biren/Rowe to approve the renewal and new bartender licenses for the 2019-2020 licensing 

period as submitted by Clerk Bauer.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(27)  Discuss updated cost estimate of the Bartlett Avenue/CTH KB Reconstruction-Phase 2 project.  

Possible action to follow. 

 CE/DPW Walter explained that the above project includes the second and final phase of reconstruction 

of Bartlett Avenue/CTH KB.  The project limits include Bartlett Avenue/CTH KB from Walden Court easterly to 

the City Limits.   Walter said that City staff recently received an updated Opinion of Probable Cost from Cedar 

Corporation, the engineering consultant on this project.  The 2019 budget includes $1,835,000 for completion of 

phase 2 of this project, based upon an estimate provided by Cedar Corporation previously.  The current estimate 

is approximately $2,051,613.  Walter  noted that this estimate does not contain a contingency line item, as the 

quantities are based upon an engineered plan.  Cedar Corporation has explained the increase to be a function of 

both increasing unit prices due to the bidding climate as well as a shorter timeframe for completion of the 

project.  As a result, staff is seeking guidance from Council on how to proceed.  The bid opening is tentatively 

scheduled for Friday, August 2nd.   CE/DPW Walter noted that due to the proposed construction schedule, there 

will be some impact on the availability to get to and from school and some of the properties located in the Town 

of Washington.   

 Council Member Schlafer suggested contacting the School District of Altoona to get their input 

regarding the impact of this project during the school year.  Finance Director Nelson provided a budget update 

for this project and where the funds will be coming from.  No action taken. 



Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Council Meeting Minutes July 11, 2019                                                Page 8 of 8 
 
 

 

(VIII)(28) Discuss/consider amending the premise description on the “Class B” Combination Liquor and 

Beer License issued to 400 Club, located at 1411 Spooner Avenue, to include a portion of their parking lot 

for the following date only:  July 23, 2019. 

Paul Johnson, owner of 400 Club, 1411 Spooner Avenue, is asking for an amendment to his current 

“Class B” Liquor and Beer license premise description to include a portion of his parking lot for the following 

date only:  July 23, 2019 in order to operate in conjunction with the Union Pacific Railroad Big Boy Locomotive 

visit to Altoona.  There will be a fenced in area where alcohol will be served.  Paul Johnson (400 Club) is aware 

that alcohol may not leave the premise.   It will be noted on the license that open containers may not be carried 

off the premise. Paul has also indicated that he will provide 4 portable toilets for use during the general event.  

Motion by Biren/Rowe to amend/not amend 400 Club “Class B” Liquor and Beer License premise 

description to include the parking lot only for the specific date of July 23, 2019.  Motion carried. 

 

(VIII)(24) Discuss/consider convening in closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats 19.85 (1)(e)  

A.  Purchase and/or sale of property.  B.  Union Pacific Special Events Permit.  C.   Park Use Contract Negotiations. 

 Motion by Biren/Rowe to convene in closed session at 7:44 p.m. pursuant to Wis. Stats. 19.85 (1)(e).  Roll 

call vote, 6-ayes, Stuber, Sexton, Schlafer, Biren, Hanks, Rowe, 0-nays.  Motion carried 6-0. 

 

(VIII)(25)  Motion to reconvene to Open Session. 

 Motion by Biren/Hanks to reconvene to Open Session at 8:41 p.m.  Roll call vote 6-ayes, Schlafer, Biren, 

Rowe, Stuber, Hanks, Sexton, 0-nays.  Motion carried 6-0. 

 No action reported out of closed session. 

 

(IX)  Miscellaneous Business and Communication.  

  

(X)  Adjournment. 

 Motion by Sexton/Rowe to adjourn at 8:45 p.m.  Motion carried. 

 

Minutes submitted by Cindy Bauer, City Clerk 



Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Special Council Meeting Minutes July 19, 2019             Page 1 of 2 

 CITY OF ALTOONA, WI 

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

July 19,  2019 

(I) Call Meeting to Order 

Mayor Brendan Pratt called the Special Council Meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. held in the Council 

Chambers at Altoona City Hall. 

(II) Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor Pratt led the Common Council and others in attendance in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

(III) Roll Call    

City Clerk Cindy Bauer called the roll.  Mayor Brendan Pratt, Council Members Dale Stuber, Red 

Hanks, Andrew Schlafer, Matthew Biren, Tim Sexton, and Susan Rowe were present.  Also Present:  Attorney 

Christopher Gierhart, City Administrator Michael Golat, Recreation Manager Debra Goldbach, and City Clerk 

Cindy Bauer.   

(IV) Citizen Participation Period  

Motion by Biren/Stuber to close the Citizen Participation Period.  Motion carried. 

(V) New Business 

(1)  Discuss/consider approval of Memorandum of Understanding related to the cooperative efforts of the 

City of Altoona and Eau Claire County Veterans Tribute Foundation, Inc. to develop a Veterans’ Tribute 

in the City of Altoona. 

City Administrator Golat explained that the Eau Claire County Veterans Tribute Foundation, Inc. 

approached the City of Altoona with a concept to establish a Veterans’ tribute within the City of Altoona, which 

honors local veterans and will serve to educate the public.  Golat explained the Memorandum of Understanding 

related to the cooperative efforts of the City of Altoona and Eau Claire County Veterans Tribute Foundation, Inc. 

to develop a Veterans’ Tribute in the City of Altoona.  Golat noted that once details are worked out between the 

City and the Eau Claire County Veterans Tribute Foundation, Inc, a Development Agreement specifying the 

terms and condition of this partnership will be brought forth to Council at a later date.  The Park & Rec 

Committee will also be review the plans as they progress.    

Motion by Sexton/Schlafer to approve a Memorandum of Understanding related to the cooperative 

efforts of the City of Altoona and Eau Claire County Veterans Tribute Foundation, Inc. to develop a Veterans’ 

Tribute in the City of Altoona and authorize the mayor to sign the documents on the City’s behalf.  Motion 

carried. 

(V)(2) Discuss/consider amending the premise description on the “Class B” Combination Liquor and Beer 

License issued to Golden Spike Bar & Grill, Inc, located at 228 Division Street, to include a portion of their 

parking lot for the following date only:  July 23, 2019. 

City Administrator Golat explained that Mark Anderson, owner of Golden Spike Bar & Grill, 228 

Division Street is asking for an amendment to his current “Class B” Liquor and Beer license premise description 

to include a portion of his parking lot for the following date only:  July 23, 2019 in order to operate in 

conjunction with the Union Pacific Railroad Big Boy Locomotive visit to Altoona.  There will be a fenced in 

area where alcohol will be served.  Mark Anderson (Golden Spike Bar & Grill) is aware that alcohol may not 

leave the premise.   It will be noted on the license that open containers may not be carried off the premise. 

Motion by Stuber/Hanks to amend the Golden Spike Bar & Grill “Class B” Liquor and Beer License 

premise description to include the parking lot only for the specific date of July 23, 2019.  Motion carried. 

Agenda >>



Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Special Council Meeting Minutes July 19, 2019                                                Page 2 of 2 
 
 

 

 

(VI)  Miscellaneous Business and Communication.  

 City Administrator Golat updated the Council on the preparation for the Big Boy Event taking place on 

July 23, 2019.  Golat noted the main purpose of the Special Council Meeting was due to the request by Golden 

Spike to amend their liquor license for the July 23, 2019 Big Boy event and a request by the Veteran’s Tribute 

Foundation to approve the Memorandum of Understanding prior to a ceremony of the signing of the 

Memorandum of Understanding on Tuesday, July 23, 2019.   

 

(VII)  Adjournment. 

 Motion by Sexton/Stuber to adjourn at 1:08 p.m.  Motion carried. 

 

Minutes submitted by Cindy Bauer, City Clerk 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Altoona City Council 

FROM:  Michael Golat, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Summary of THURSDAY, JULY 25, 2019 Council Meeting Items 

(VII) UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

ITEM 1. Discuss/consider approval of Final Implementation Plan for Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 

(No action at the July 11, 2019 Council Meeting). 

See enclosed: 

·     Proposed Final Implementation Plan for Creekside at Hillcrest Greens (updated 2019-0718) 

·     Staff Report (2019-0702) 

The Final Implementation Plan (FIP) of the Creekside in Hillcrest Greens in the Hillcrest Greens Planned 

Community Development (PCD) describes implementation of the remaining portions of the Hillcrest 

Greens General Implementation Plan (GIP) identified as multi-family residential on the west end of the 

development, adjacent to Sawgrass Place. 

The Creekside encompassed two 24-unit residential buildings. A total of 92 automobile parking spaces are 

illustrated, comprised of 12 garage stalls in two 6-unit buildings, and 80 surface spaces, 36 of which are 

covered by two open air canopies. The total project area is 4.17 acres. 

The proposal includes the proposed reconfiguration of three parcels on Sawgrass Place, including relocation 

of the existing stormwater pond. 

The proposal has been revised since the Plan Commission meeting on July 9 to reflect the approval 

conditions. Those conditions, thus satisfied, have been removed from those provided below. However, Staff 

did not have enough advance scheduling to amend the enclosed staff report. 

Staff recommends that the Council approve the Final Implementation Plan for Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 

with the following modifications (conditions) of approval: 

(1)   Submittal and successful review of final storm water plan and civil site plan by City Engineer as 

described in the Altoona Municipal Code Chapter 14. The civil plan shall illustrate compliance with 

the Steep Slopes Ordinance (19.15.110) and confirm autoturn access for municipal firetruck. 

Agenda >>              Materials >>



(2)   Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be 4” STORZ and located on the front of the building, near 

the water service lines. 

(3)   The petitioner shall provide a revised storm water model for the proposed pond relocation to confirm 

compliance with Title 14 and any other applicable standards. 

(4)     All exterior building and site lighting shall be shielded and full cut-off design. 

(5)     No signs are indicated in the plan or approved through this permit. 

(6)   The trash enclosures shall be comprised of building and site compatible materials such that bins are 

fully screened from the public right-of-way. 

(7)     All HVAC equipment, regardless of location, shall be screened consistent with City standards. 

Suggested motion:  I move to approve / not approve the Final Implementation Plan for Creekside at 

Hillcrest Greens will staff recommended approval conditions. 

ITEM 2 - Discuss/consider approval of Certified Survey Map to reconfigure three parcels:  #201-

2378-10-020, #201-2378-06-000, and #201-2378-01-020 on Sawgrass Place in the Hillcrest Greens 

Planned Community Development as requested by Capital Investment Partners, LLC.  (No action at 

the July 11, 2019 Council Meeting). 

See Enclosed: 

·     Proposed CSM 

The proposed CSM reconfigures three existing parcels, two lots and an outlot, into two lots and an outlot 

to facilitate the development of the Creekside at Hillcrest Greens. The CSM has been revised since the July 

9 Plan Commission meeting to increase the size of the access easement from 15 feet to 20 feet. 

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve the proposed CSM. 

(VIII) NEW BUSINESS 

ITEM 1 – Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as is practical on Resolution 7C-19, a 

resolution authorizing street and utility improvements and levying special assessments against 

benefited property for the Bartlett Avenue/CTH KB Reconstruction-Phase 2 project.      

A public hearing is scheduled to consider input from interested parties and affected property owners 

regarding the Bartlett Avenue/CTH KB Reconstruction-Phase 2 project.  Specifically, testimony will be 

heard on proposed special assessments. The public hearing has been properly noticed consistent with State 

Statutes. All affected property owners as listed in the Eau Claire County tax roll have been notified and 

have been provided a copy of their estimated assessments.  

Agenda >>              Materials >>

Agenda >>              Materials >>



The scope of the project includes reconstruction of Bartlett Avenue/CTH KB from Walden Court easterly 

to the City Limits.         

Items included in the project consist of grading, gravel, asphaltic concrete paving, concrete curb and gutter, 

multi-use trail, sanitary sewer and appurtenances, water main and appurtenances, storm sewer, and lawn 

restoration.  As in the past, Altoona has used the special assessment process to fund a portion of the project. 

Suggested motion:  I move to close the public hearing. 

ITEM 2 – Discuss/consider approval of Resolution 7C-19, a final resolution authorizing street and 

utility improvements and levying special assessments against benefited property for the Bartlett 

Avenue/CTH KB Reconstruction-Phase 2 project.      

Please see ITEM 1 above for details on this agenda item. 

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve Resolution 7C-19, a final resolution authorizing street 

and utility improvements and levying special assessments against benefited property for the Bartlett 

Avenue/CTH KB Reconstruction-Phase 2 project.  

ITEM 3 – Public Hearing at 6:05 p.m. or as soon thereafter as is practical on Resolution 7D-19, a 

resolution authorizing street and utility improvements and levying special assessments against 

benefited property for the 2019 Hayden’s Addition Reconstruction project. 

A public hearing is scheduled to consider input from interested parties and affected property owners 

regarding the 2019 Hayden’s Addition Reconstruction Project.  Specifically, testimony will be heard on 

proposed special assessments. The public hearing has been properly noticed consistent with State Statutes. 

All affected property owners as listed in the Eau Claire County tax roll have been notified and have been 

provided a copy of their estimated assessments.  

The scope of the project includes reconstruction of the following street segments. 

1. Hayden Avenue, from 3rd Street East to approximately 479 feet east.

2. Garfield Avenue, from 3rd Street East to the easterly end of Garfield Avenue.

3. 4th Street East, from Daniels Avenue to Hayden Avenue.

Items included in the project consist of grading, gravel, asphaltic concrete paving, concrete curb and gutter, 

sidewalk, sanitary sewer and appurtenances, water main and appurtenances, storm sewer, and lawn 

restoration.  As in the past, Altoona has used the special assessment process to fund a portion of the project. 

Suggested motion:  I move to close the public hearing. 

ITEM 4 – Discuss/consider approval of Resolution 7D-19, a final resolution of the Common Council 

of the City of Altoona, declaring intent to exercise its police powers pursuant to Section 66.0703 of 

Wisconsin Statutes to specially assess for the 2019 Hayden’s Addition Reconstruction project. 

Agenda >>              Materials >>

Agenda >>              Materials >>

Agenda >>              Materials >>



Please see ITEM 3 above for details on this agenda item. 

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve Resolution 7D-19, a final resolution declaring intent to 

exercise its police powers pursuant to Section 66.0703 of Wisconsin Statutes to specially assess for the 

2019 Hayden’s Addition Reconstruction project 

ITEM 5 - Presentation by Jerome Lanners regarding a Development Plan for property south of Hwy 

12 and west of Mayer Road.  Possible action to follow: 

See enclosed: 

- Conceptual Layout, Finland Holdings 

Mr. Lanners acquired property immediately east of the Windsor Forest Subdivision in 2018 and in that year 

the City and Town of Washington memorialized a Boundary Adjustment Agreement to incorporate those 

properties into the City of Altoona. 

The area is subject to conceptual backage and access road illustrations prepared by the Wisconsin 

Department of Transportation. The City is working with the Town of Washington, Eau Claire County, 

DOT, and other stakeholders with technical assistance from the West Central Wisconsin Regional Planning 

Commission to Officially Map these and other roads in proximity to Highway 12. 

The specific challenge at this time is that a different land owner controls property to west, prohibiting free 

access to existing and planned Baumbach Way, and east, presenting safe and orderly development of 

infrastructure to access Mayer Road. 

Mr. Lanners and his agents will present the conceptual plan for the property and describe the challenges. 

ITEM 6 - Discuss/consider approval of Jerome Berg as the New Agent for Cenergy LLC, DBA Mega 

Holiday #3705, located at 1027 N. Hillcrest Parkway, Altoona, Wisconsin. 

The City was notified in writing by Cenergy, LLC that Jerome Berg has been appointed to take over 

leadership responsibilities of the Mega Holiday #3705 store located at 1027 Hillcrest Parkway, replacing 

William Conroy.   

According to Wis. Stats 125.04(6)(b) the following steps are to be taken in the appointment of a successor 

agent: 

·  The newly appointed agent may act in that capacity until approved or disapproved.

·  The new agent must complete Forms AT-107a (Schedule for Successor of Agent) and AT-103

(Auxiliary Questionnaire) and file them with the municipal clerk. 

· If the change is approved by the governing body, the municipal clerk must amend the license to

reflect the change of agent. 

Agenda >>              Materials >>

Agenda >>              Materials >>



Cenergy, LLC. submitted the necessary forms for appointing a new agent and was approved by the 

Altoona Police Department.  

Staff recommends approval of appointment of new agent and to amend the licenses to reflect the change 

of agent. 

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve Jerome Berg as the New Agent for Cenergy, LLC, 

DBA Mega Holiday #3705 located at 1027 N. Hillcrest Parkway, Altoona.. 

ITEM 7 - Discuss/consider Mayoral Appointment of Fred Hoversholm to the Personnel Committee 

to fill the vacant citizen position for a term ending April 2021. 

For your consideration is a resident who has expressed interest in serving on the Altoona Personnel 

Committee.  Fred Hoversholm is currently serving on the Community Development Block Grant 

Committee and would like the opportunity to serve on the Personnel Committee.  Hoversholm has lived in 

this area for a long time and has been involved in community work for quite some time. 

Mayor Pratt recommends approval of Hoversholm’s appointment. 

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve Mayoral Appointment of Fred Hoversholm as 

recommended by Mayor Pratt to the Altoona Personnel Committee to fill the vacant citizen position for a 

term ending April 2021.  

ITEM 8 – Discuss/consider approval of Ordinance 7G-19, an Ordinance Repealing Chapter 9.44 of 

the Altoona Municipal Code “Panhandling” in its entirety. 

On December 22, 2015 the City Council passed an ordinance related to regulation of panhandling within 

the City of Altoona. The City has subsequently been contacted by the Wisconsin Chapter of the American 

Civil Liberties Union, and they have provided case law and other documentation suggesting that such 

ordinance related to panhandling are unconstitutional with respect to an individual’s right to solicit funds, 

picket, protest, or engage in other constitutionally protected activity (please see attached letter). The 

ACLU has suggested that the City repeal the ordinance in light of facts presented.   

Chief Bakken has reviewed the ordinance and does not feel that repealing the Chapter would be 

detrimental with respect to addressing legitimate complaints related to panhandling wherein public health, 

safety or welfare were endangered. Therefore, staff is recommending that Chapter 9.44 be repealed. 

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve Ordinance 7G-19, an Ordinance repealing Chapter 

9.44 of the Altoona Municipal Code “Panhandling” in its entirety. 

ITEM 9 - Discuss/consider approval of Ordinance 7H-19, an Ordinance amending Chapter 10.20 of 

the Altoona Municipal Code “Stopping, Standing and Parking” specifically to amend Sections 

10.20.030 and 10.20.075 relating to parking prohibited and two-hour parking zone established.   

Agenda >>

Agenda >>              Materials >>

Agenda >>              Materials >>



City staff received a request to alter the parking prohibitions along Lynn Avenue, from Division Street to 

First Street West.  The request was made to address parking by nearby residents in front of an adjacent 

business, which impacts use by customers.  An addition revision is proposed to address ongoing snow 

removal concerns by prohibiting parking between 2 a.m. and 6 a.m. 

The attached ordinance amends Section 10.20.030 to prohibit parking from two a.m. to six a.m. on the north 

and south side of Lynn Avenue from Division Street to First Street West.  The ordinance also amends 

section 10.20.075 changing the one-hour parking zone to two-hour parking zone on the following streets 

and adding a section on Lynn Avenue as described below:  

 A.  On the south side of Lynn Avenue from Division Street to a point thirty‑five one hundred 

thirty-five feet west of Division Street; 

 B.  On the west side of Division Street from Lynn Avenue to a point thirty‑five feet south of Lynn 

Avenue. (Ord. 13, 1977); 

C.  On the north side of Lynn Avenue from Division Street to First Street West. 

Staff recommends approval of amending Chapter 10.20 as further described above.  

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve Ordinance 7H-19, an Ordinance amending Chapter 

10.20 of the Altoona Municipal Code.  

ITEM 10 - Discuss/consider additional intersection control in the Sherman Highland Addition. 

Mayor Pratt and Council Member Sexton have requested this agenda item to consider adding additional 

STOP signs within the Sherman Highland Addition in response to constituents’ concerns. 

A map of recorded crashes since January 2014 is attached.  Hamilton Avenue is currently classified as a 

through street, and STOP signs are placed on every side street approach.  Hamilton Avenue is a logical 

location for a through street as it receives both residential and nearby commercial traffic.  The remaining 

intersections to the north within the residential neighborhood are uncontrolled. 

City staff advises that two approaches to consider may be: 

1. Dedicate an additional through street as necessary.  This would result in the least amount of

required signs, but may contribute to driver confusion due to a mixture of stop-controlled and

uncontrolled intersections within the neighborhood.

2. Complete a comprehensive control layout through the neighborhood consisting of “basket-

weave” intersections wherein two-way STOP control is placed at alternating intersections.  This

would result in higher cost to install and maintain, but would be a thorough and predictable

system.

City staff is seeking guidance from Council on how to proceed, and as directed, would return with an 

ordinance amendment for consideration at the next scheduled Council meeting. 

Agenda >>              Materials >>



Suggested motion:    I move to approve/not approve directing City staff to prepare and present an 

amendment of Chapter 10.24 of the Altoona Municipal Code at the next scheduled Council meeting. 

ITEM 11 - Discuss/consider convening in closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats 19.85 (1)(e) 

deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or 

conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a 

closed session. 

A.   Purchase and/or sale of property. 

ITEM 12 - Motion to reconvene to Open Session for the purpose of discussion and possible 

consideration on the matter entertained in Closed Session. 

A.  Purchase and/or sale of property. 



City Council | July 25, 2019
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 1 of 41

Agenda >>               Summary >>



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 2 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 3 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 4 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 5 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 6 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 7 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 8 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 9 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 10 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 11 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 12 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 13 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 14 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 15 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 16 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 17 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 18 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 19 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 20 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 21 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 22 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 23 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 24 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 25 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 26 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 27 of 41



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 28 of 41



PLANNING DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 2019 July 2 

PLAN COMMISSION – 2019-0709 

FINAL IMPLEMENTATION PLAN – CREEKSIDE AT HILLCREST GREENS 

 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 1 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

Address TBD 

Parcel ID 201-2377-06-000, 201-2377-10-030, 201-2377-10-040, 201-1045-06-000  

Application Final Implementation Plan (PCD FIP)  

Prepared By Joshua Clements, AICP, City Planner 

Applicant Rooney Properties 
 13167 County Hwy OO 
 Chippewa Falls, WI 54729 

Owner Rooney Properties 

Parcel Description A] Lot 2 CSM 3452 V19 P239 Doc 1173113 (201-2378-01-000) 
B] Outlot 9 Hillcrest Greens II Plat (201-2378-06-000) 
C] Lot 94 CSM 2995 V16 P425 Doc 1103574 (201-2378-10-020) 

 Properties to be reconfigured through CSM.  

Requested Action Adopt the Final Implementation Plan for three parcels in the Hillcrest Greens General 
Implementation Plan (2013), in the Planned Community Development District (PCD).  

Proposal Summary The Final Implementation Plan (FIP) describes implementation of the remaining 
portions of the Hillcrest Greens General Implementation Plan (GIP) identified as multi-
family residential on the west end of the development, adjacent to Sawgrass Place. The 
GIP illustrates 120 to 170 units at “approximately 25 units/acre”. The total area is 4.47 
acres. 

  The proposed development of Creekside is two 24-unit buildings, 48 total units over 
3.03 acres. A portion (approx. 25%) of the 1.14 acres stormwater pond is also 
attributable to this development, for a net density of less than 15 units per acre. 

  The development reflects 92 total automobile parking spaces, including parking, 
covered, and open surface spaces; 1.9 per dwelling unit. 

  The design approach and materials utilized in the building is described as a 
“Northwoods feel”, utilizing wood timbers, stone, and hardboard siding of an earth 
tone selection. 

  The accompanying proposed CSM includes relocation and perpetualization of the 15-
foot access easement that benefits two properties west of this site located in the Town 
of Washington. These parcels currently have access directly from Highway 12, a 
condition that could be restricted in the future. 

  The stormwater from the site will be directed into the pond that is to be relocated for 
this project. That pond also serves The Classic, Casey’s General Store, and Sawgrass 
Place. 

 
 
 

SUMMARY 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 29 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 2 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

Submittals (1) Creekside at Hillcrest Greens Final Implementation Plan  
   The following elements are required per Altoona Municipal Code 19.64.180: 
 

A.  An accurate map of the area covered by the plan, including the relationship to the 

total general development plan; Provided. 

B.  The pattern of public and private roads, driveways, walkways and parking facilities; 

Provided. 

C.  Detailed lot layout and subdivision plat where required; Provided. 

D. The arrangement of building groups, other than single-family residences, and their 

architectural character; Provided 

E.  Sanitary sewer and water mains; Provided. 

F.  The location and treatment of open space areas and recreational or other special 

amenities; Provided. 

G.  The location and description of any areas to be dedicated to the public; Provided. 

H.  General landscape treatment; Provided. 

I.    Proof of financing capability; N/A. 

J.  Projected city review and costs associated with the development; Provided. 

K.  A development schedule indicating: N/A. 

1.  The approximate date when construction of the project can be expected to begin, 

2. The stages in which the project will be built and the approximate date when 

construction of each stage can be expected to begin, 

3.  The anticipated rate of development, 

4.  The approximate date when the development of each of the stages will be 

completed, and 

5.  The area and location of common open space that will be provided at each stage; 

L.  Agreements, bylaws, provisions or covenants which govern the organizational 

structure, use, maintenance and continued protection of the planned community 

development and any of its common services, common open areas or other facilities; 

N/A. 

M.  Any other plans, documents or schedules requested by the city. 

  (2) Creekside at Hillcrest Greens – Civil Plans (June 2019) 
 
  (3) Preliminary CSM 
        
  City Staff has determined that submittals satisfy requirements illustrated by code. 

Applicable Standards City of Altoona Comprehensive Plan (2009) 
Hillcrest Greens General Implementation Plan (2013) 
City of Altoona Code Title 19: Zoning 
City of Altoona Code Title 18: Subdivisions and Land Divisions 
City of Altoona Code Title 12: Streets and Sidewalks 

Review Required By Plan Commission; City Council 

Reviewed By Planning Department, Public Works, Fire Department, Police Department 

Staff Recommendation Approve Final Implementation Plan with Modifications.  

 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 30 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 3 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

Zoning & Land Use The current land use of is Vacant*. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

* The existing stormwater pond servicing the immediate vicinity is located within the property and is 
proposed to be relocated within the project area. 

 

 

Above: Context of the three existing parcels (spring 2018 Eau Claire County GIS aerial photography) 

 

 

 

 

Hillcrest Greens II Zoning Land Use 

Subject Site PCD Planned Community Development Vacant 

North N/A  Highway 12 

South PCD Planned Community Development Fairway Park 

East PCD Planned Community Development The Classic CBRF 

Casey’s General Store 

West RL (Town of Washington) Commercial 

The Center 

Background Information 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 31 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 4 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

General Improvement Plan (2013) 

 

 

Proposed Land Use Multi-Family (48 unit) 

  

 The 2009 City of Altoona Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Map, identifies the area 
as “Recreational Commercial”, residual from the previous use as the Hillcrest Golf and 
Country Club.  

 
  All of the parcels are zoned Planned Community Development.   
 

Criteria for Approval  

There are two principal criteria to evaluate the proposed Final Implementation Plan:  

• First, consistency with the adopted General Implementation Plan; and,  

• Second, that the City of Altoona Comprehensive Plan, Subdivision Title and Zoning Title applicable 
standards, concepts and goals are met. 

The most relevant ordinance sections that provide the principal regulatory guidelines and standards include, but 
are not limited to: 

Project Description, Analysis & Conclusion 

Conformance with 
Zoning 

Conformance with 
Comprehensive Plan 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 32 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 5 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

• Hillcrest Greens General Implementation Plan (2013) 

• 19.64 PCD-Planned Community Developments 

• 19.54 Site Plans 

• 2009 Comprehensive Plan 

The following are standards and guidelines as enshrined by ordinance, section header entries in bold, text 
language in italics. Following the ordinance standards are staff responses and analysis. 

 

19.64.030 Standards governing project approval.  

The plan commission shall consider the proposed PCD plan from the point of view of the standards and 

purposes of the regulations governing the planned community development so as to achieve a maximum of 

coordination between the proposed development and the surrounding uses, the conservation of woodland and 

the protection of watercourses from erosion, siltation and pollution, and a maximum of safety, convenience, 

and amenity for the residents of the development. To these ends the plan commission and the city council shall 

consider the location of buildings, parking areas and other features with respect to the topography of the area 

and existing features such as streams and large trees; the efficiency, adequacy and safety of the proposed 

layout of internal streets and driveways; the adequacy and location of green area provided; the adequacy, 

location, and screening of the parking area; if the planned development is consistent with the comprehensive 

plan; if the planned development can be planned and developed to harmonize with any existing or proposed 

development in the area surrounding the project site, and such other matters as the plan commission and city 

council may find to have a material bearing upon the stated standards and objectives of the PCD zone 

regulations. 

“location of buildings, parking areas and other features with respect to the topography of the area and 

existing features such as streams and large trees” 

The prosed site plan does not illustrate removal of any existing trees on the site. Except for the site 

perimeter, the land has been cleared and graded for development. Existing trees near the Highway 

12 right-of-way are illustrated to remain. 

“the efficiency, adequacy and safety of the proposed layout of internal streets and driveways” 

The site design meets driveway geometry standards. The vehicle drive isles and parking spaces meet 

minimum requirements. No dedicated pedestrian connection to the public sidewalk is indicated.  

“the adequacy and location of green area provided” 

The specifications provided indicate that the site is approximately 42.4 percent impervious and 57.6 

green space. General landscaping is proposed.  

“the adequacy, location, and screening of the parking area” 

The automobile parking area is within permitted parking space quantities and meets character 

requirements provided in Chapter 19.52. The parking area is partially screened by the two proposed 

6-stall parking garages, and is otherwise not screened. Trees and general landscaping is provided, but 

not illustrated with the suggested intent of providing visual screening.  

“if the planned development is consistent with the comprehensive plan” 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 33 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 6 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

The proposed site plan predominately meets the Community Design Standards (2.8) in the 

Comprehensive Plan (2009). The Design Standards generally require that the building be placed 

toward the street with minimal setback, which is not practical as applied to this site.  

“if the planned development can be planned and developed to harmonize with any existing or proposed 

development in the area surrounding the project site” 

The scale of the building and selection of the materials is proposed to be similar to The Classic, located 

adjacent to the subject site.  

19.64.050 Uses permitted. 

A.  Residential Uses. Single-family, two-family and multiple-family dwelling units in detached, 

semidetached, attached or multistoried structures, or any combination thereof, excluding all home 

occupations; 

The proposed use is consistent with the Hillcrest General Implementation Plan (2013) 

19.64.060 Lot area, lot width, side yard, rear yard, lot coverage and building height requirements. 

In the PCD district, the requirements for lot area, lot width, side yard, rear yard, front yard, lot coverage 

and building height shall be consistent with basic planning and zoning principles and designed to 

encourage and promote improved environmental design and economic vitality. Such requirements as are 

made a part of an approved recorded precise development plan shall be, along with the recorded plat 

itself, construed to be and enforced in accordance with this chapter.  

The proposed development of Creekside is two 24-unit buildings, 48 total units over 3.03 acres. A 
portion (approx. 25%) of the 1.14 acres stormwater pond is also attributable to this development, for 
a net density of less than 15 units per acre.  

As noted above, the lot design is approximately 57 percent green space. Approximately half of the 
open space is existing hillside and wooded area along the west and south portions of the property. 
The remaining half are lawn spaces immediately adjacent to the building, small areas encircling the 
parking areas, and a utility easement area within the required Highway 12 setback. 

The building setback from the west property line is 50 feet at its most narrow.  

The height of the buildings is approximately 45 feet, which is less than The Classic to the east. 

The proposal has been reviewed and staff recommended modifications are based upon Altoona 

Municipal Code general development standards (Site Plan, Parking, etc.) and the Community Design 

Principles contained in the Comprehensive Plan (2009).  

19.64.070 Character and intensity of land use. 

In a PCD district, the uses proposed, also their intensity and arrangement on the site shall be of an aesthetic 
and operational character which: 
 
A.  Are compatible with the physical nature of the site with particular concern for preservation of natural 
features, tree growth and open space; 

 
The site has been cleared and graded for development. There are existing trees along the west and 
south, which are contagious with Fairway Park and the Otter Creek corridor. There are six existing 
trees within the Highway 12 setback area, and are illustrated to remain. 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 34 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 7 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

 
B.  Produce an attractive environment of sustained aesthetic and ecologic desirability, economic stability 
and functional practicability compatible with the general development plans for the area as established 
by the community; 

 
The proposed architecture and materials proposed for the buildings are similar in type and quality as 
utilized in existing nearby structures. The height and building orientation is also consistent with 
nearby sites. 
 
The proposal preserves the existing trees that are contiguous with Fairway Park and Otter Creek 
corridor, as well as six existing trees near the Highway 12 right-of-way.  
 
The FIP narrative includes references to providing street boulevard streets, however, the provided 
landscape plan does not include these. The narrow right-of-way around the cul-de-sac (8 to 10 feet), 
once the sidewalk is in place, with the added snow burden that cul-de-sacs create, may not be 
reasonable. 
 
The proposal is consistent with approved General Implementation Plan for the area. 
 
The land does not have any known development constraints or environmental sensitivities. The entire 

site is disturbed from pre-development conditions and is a “pad ready” site. 

C.  Not adversely impact school or other municipal services, including public parks and recreational areas; 
 

This site was identified as multi-family development (GIP illustrates 120 to 170 units at “approximately 
25 units/acre”). Area municipal utilities and public spaces have been planned and sized accordingly.   

 
D.  Not create a traffic or parking demand incompatible with the existing or proposed facilities; 

 
The proposed development reflects fewer dwelling units than had been forecasted and planned for 
in the Traffic Impact analysis utilized to plan existing facilities. 

 
E.  Grant the plan commission the right to exclude from a plat any lot or lots which by reason of size, shape, 
location, or for other good cause are not reasonably consistent with basic planning and zoning principles. 

 
Not applicable. 

 

19.64.080  Economic feasibility and impact. 

The proponents of a planned community development district application shall provide evidence 

satisfactory to the plan commission and city council of its economic feasibility, of available adequate 

financing, and that it would not adversely affect the economic prosperity of the city or the values of 

surrounding properties.  

Not applicable. The General Implementation Plan has been improved. 
 

19.64.090 Engineering design standards. 

The width of the street right-of-way, width and location of street or other paving, outdoor lighting and 

streetlights, location of sewer and water lines, provisions for stormwater drainage or other environmental 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 35 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 8 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

engineering consideration shall be satisfactory to the plan commission; provided, however, that in no case 

shall public standards be less than those necessary to insure the public safety and welfare as determined 

by the city.  

The site is planned for multi-family use. The stormwater modelling has been completed for the site 

and water will be directed to a planned relocation of an existing stormwater pond designed to 

accommodate the development.  

Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be 4” STORZ. 

Driveway approaches meet Chapter 12.12.025 Commercial Driveway Approaches (Ord 5F-18) 
geometric standards. 

 
19.64.120 Off-street parking 

In the planned community development district, off-street parking facilities shall be provided in accordance 

with applicable regulations herein set forth in Chapter 19.52 or any applicable overlay zoning district, and 

such requirements as are made a part of an approved, recorded, precise development plan shall be, along 

with the recorded plan itself, construed to be and enforced as a part of this chapter. There shall be two 

extra parking spaces clearly designated as “Handicapped Parking only” in each parking lot.  

The proposed automobile parking meets the standards provided in Chapter 19.52 Parking and Loading 
Spaces. The minimum parking required is 1.5 spaces per dwelling unit greater than 600 sf2. The 
proposed buildings are 48 units; thus the minimum provided automobile parking spaces is 72. The 
proposal includes 92 stalls, 4 of which are identified as handicap. 
 

19.64.130 Screening requirements. 

Opaque screening shall be required when property for nonresidential uses or structures in a PCD district 

abuts property for a residence or residentially zoned districts, or when parking or loading areas abut a 

public street.  Screening shall include decorative fences, walls, vegetation, berms, or a combination of 

similar features.  Walls and fences shall include durable, high quality materials such as native stone, 

masonry, wrought iron, or similar materials.  Chain link fences shall not be considered an appropriate 

screening material along public street frontage.  Such screening shall be done in accordance with an 

approved landscape plan to ensure the compatibility of the proposed landscape with the visual character 

of the city, with surrounding parcels, and with existing and proposed features of the subject property.  

Properties to the west are anticipated to be screened by existing mature trees and woodland 

understory. The property to the southeast is the Classic CBRF, with a new wing anticipated to be 

constructed. Improved landscaping to create additional screening of the parking area is 

recommended.  

Properties to the east, across St. Andrews Drive, are vacant parcels identified for residential 

development; and beyond those parcels to the east and southeast are existing dwellings. To the south 

is The Clubhouse community-based residential facility, across Sawgrass Place. This relationship spatial 

relationship is as approved in the Hillcrest Greens General Implementation Plan. 

The FIP submittals do not include a site lighting plan. Staff recommends adding a condition that all 

exterior and site lighting be downcast, shielded, and full cut-off design.  

 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 36 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 9 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

Access Easement 

The original Plat for Hillcrest Greens (2013-0904) includes text on the appropriate lot to “provide 

reasonable egress easement” to the three parcels located to the west of Hillcrest Greens (below). 

 

The subsequent Plat of Hillcrest Greens II, dated 2014 March 18, includes a twenty-foot-wide access 

easement to benefit the adjoining property located in the Town of Washington. The easement width is 

twenty feet centered on the property line between Lot 94 and Outlot 9.  

 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 37 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 10 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

Proposed easement: 

 

 

The easement is an issue of concern for three reasons: 

(1) Access from Sawgrass Place to the west is reduced from 20 feet to 15 feet. The typical commercial 

driveway (single point) is 24 feet. 

(2) A portion of the stormwater pond is proposed to be located within the easement; 

(3) The proposed arrangement of buildings (detached garages) and grading of the stormwater pond 

would not permit vehicles to pass within the easement. The eaves of the garages encroach into the 

easement by approximately 18 inches. 

As stated in the initial Plat for Hillcrest Greens, the easement is to provide egress for three parcels, one is 

a commercial business (The Center), one a dwelling, and the other is undevelopable. If the current access 

for these properties is restricted or eliminated by WisDOT, this easement route may become the only 

access.  

The easement as illustrated on Plat for Hillcrest Greens II narrows from 20 to 15 feet once it intersects 

with the west property line. This may be to share a portion of the access with that adjoining property to 

which it is benefit. The easement is clearly not less than 20 feet up to that point. 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 38 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 11 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

The portion of the easement parallel to Highway 12, as proposed, is partially located within an existing 

overhead utility easement, and thus does not significantly encumber the property. However, the north-

south portion will be challenging to accomplish without modifications to the Site and/or Pond. 

 

Above: Proposed access easement (blue) in relation to the proposed garages and storm water pond. 

Recommended Condition: Easement shall be maintained not less than twenty feet. 

 

 

 

 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 39 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 12 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

Steep Slopes 

The proposed southern building is within approximately 10 feet of the existing steep slope on the site. As 

described in the Steep Slopes Ordinance (19.15.110), disturbance of steep slope or within the steep slope 

margin area is subject to mandatory steep slope protection requirements.  Pursuant to that ordinance, all 

slope protection requirements shall be furnished prior to issuance of any land disturbance or construction 

permit. 

The FIP narrative includes “there are steep slopes along the southern boundary that will not be disturbed” 

(paragraph 5).  

Recommended Condition: Civil Plan shall illustrate compliance with the Steep Slopes Ordinance.  

 

Whereas Altoona Municipal Code 19.64.190 “Final Implementation Plan – Approval”: 

 A.  Following a review of the final implementation plan, the plan commission shall recommend to 

the council that it be approved as submitted, approved with modifications, or disapproved. 

 B.  Upon receipt of the plan commission's recommendation, the council may approve the plan and 

authorize the development to proceed accordingly, add or modify approval conditions, or disapprove the 

plan and send it back to the plan commission for further negotiation with the developer. 

 C.  In the event of approval of the final implementation plan, the building, site and operational 

plans for the development, as approved, as well as all other commitments and contractual agreements with 

the city offered or required with regard to project value, character and other factors pertinent to an 

assurance that the proposed development will be carried out basically as presented in the official submittal 

plans, shall be recorded by the developer within a reasonable period of time, as determined by the city 

council, in the county register of deeds' office. This shall be accomplished prior to the issuance of any 

building permit. 

 D.  Any subsequent change or addition to the plans or use shall first be submitted for approval to 

the Zoning Administrator or his/her designee and if, in the opinion of the Zoning Administrator, such 

change or addition constitutes a substantial alteration of the original plan, the procedure provided in 

Section 19.64.160, and in this subsection shall be required. 

 E.  If, after approval of the final implementation plan, any portion or stage of the proposed 
development schedule established under subsection K of Section 19.64.180 is not met, then the plan 
commission may initiate the appropriate action to rezone the property which has not been developed in 
accordance with such development schedule to an appropriate zoning district or districts compatible with 
the surrounding area, as determined by the plan commission. 

 

Therefore, Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Final Implementation 
Plan for Creekside at Hillcrest Greens with the following modifications (conditions) of approval: 

 

(1) The shared access easement shall be consistent with the existing Plat (2014-0318) 20 feet to the 
adjoining property to the west. The easement text shall be modified to incorporate public utility 
access within the same. 

Staff Recommendation 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 40 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


 

City of Altoona | V 715-839-6092 | F 715-839-1800 Page 13 
1303 Lynn Avenue | Altoona | WI | 54720 FIP – Creekside at Hillcrest Greens 
www.ci.altoona.wi.us | cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us   2019-0709 

(2) Submittal and successful review of final storm water plan and civil site plan by City Engineer as 
described in the Altoona Municipal Code Chapter 14. The civil plan shall illustrate compliance with 
the Steep Slopes Ordinance (19.15.110) and confirm autoturn access for municipal firetruck. 

(3) Provide dedicated pedestrian walkway separated from vehicle driving areas connecting the public 
sidewalk to those adjacent to the buildings. 

(4) Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be 4” STORZ and located on the front of the building, 
near the water service lines. 

(5) The petitioner shall provide a revised storm water model for the proposed pond relocation to 
confirm compliance with Title 14 and any other applicable standards.  

(6) All exterior building and site lighting shall be shielded and full cut-off design. 

(7) No signs are indicated in the plan or approved through this permit. 

(8) The trash enclosures shall be comprised of building and site compatible materials such that bins 
are fully screened from the public right-of-way. 

(9) All HVAC equipment, regardless of location, shall be screened consistent with City standards. 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 1 | Page 41 of 41

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


City Council | July 25, 2019
Old Business | Item 2 | Page 1 of 3

Agenda >>               Summary >>



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 2 | Page 2 of 3



City Council | July 25, 2019 
Old Business | Item 2 | Page 3 of 3



City Council | July 25, 2019
New Business | Item 1 | Page 1 of 1

Agenda >>               Summary >>



RESOLUTION NO:   7C-19 

FINAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING STREET AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS AND 

LEVYING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AGAINST BENEFITED PROPERTY FOR THE BARTLETT 

AVENUE/CTH KB RECONSTRUCTION-PHASE 2 PROJECT AS FURTHER DESCRIBED 

BELOW:  

The construction will include the following street segment. 

a. Bartlett Avenue/CTH KB from Walden Court easterly to the City Limits.

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Altoona, Wisconsin held a public hearing in the  

Council Chambers at Altoona City Hall at 1303 Lynn Avenue at approximately 6:00 p.m. on July 25, 2019 for 

the purpose of hearing all interested persons concerning the preliminary resolution and the report of the  

Director of Public Works including the plans pertaining to the proposed improvements and construction of the 

above described assessment district in the City of Altoona for the Bartlett Avenue/CTH KB Reconstruction-

Phase 2 Project.  Items include grading, gravel, asphaltic concrete paving, concrete curb and gutter, water main 

and appurtenances, sanitary sewer and appurtenances, driveways, multi-use trail, and lawn restoration. 

WHEREAS, notice of aforesaid public hearing was duly and properly published in the Eau Claire Leader 

Telegram as confirmed by the Proof of Publication on file with the City Clerk and such notice was duly and 

properly posted at City Hall; and 

WHEREAS, all persons who desired to speak at said public hearing were heard, and 

WHEREAS, the Common Council has reviewed the reports of the City Engineer and has considered all the 

comments of persons appearing at the public hearing; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Common Council of the City of Altoona, Wisconsin, 

determines as follows: 

1. The report of the City Engineer pertaining to the construction of the above described public

improvements, including the plans and specifications and assessments as given, is hereby adopted and

approved and available for review at City Hall.

2. The City Engineer is directed to carry out the work of such improvements in accordance with the

aforesaid report.

3. Payment, in part, for the improvements shall be made by assessing $382,883.67 of the estimated total

project cost of $1,804,193.50 to property benefited as indicated in the report, provided such amount

shall be reduced if the cost of project is less than estimated, and further provided that such amount may

be increased if the cost of the project is more (but not materially more) than estimated, pursuant to

§66.60(10) and (11) Wis. Stats.

4. Assessments shown on the report represent an exercise of the police power and have been determined

on a reasonable basis and are hereby confirmed.

5. The assessments for all projects included in said report are hereby combined as a single assessment,

but any interested property owner shall be entitled to object to each assessment separately or all

assessments jointly for any purpose or purposes.

6. Assessments may be paid in full within 45 days at the time of initial billing, or, alternatively, in ten

(10) annual installments that bear an interest rate of 4.6% per year on any unpaid balance. The initial

billing is anticipated in 2020, upon project completion. The remaining payments will be placed on the

next tax roll after the paid in full due date.

City Council | July 25, 2019
New Business | Item 2 | Page 1 of 2

Agenda >>               Summary >>



7. Principal payments on assessments may be deferred for those affected property owners that meet 

criteria set forth in Chapter 3.26, City Assumption of Special Assessments, until such time as the title 

to the subject property is transferred by any means. Property owners that receive approval for a 

deferment of paying the principle will be required to make annual interest payment at a rate of 6.00% 

per year on any unpaid balance. 

 

8. The City Clerk is directed to publish this resolution as a Class I notice in the official newspaper and to 

mail a copy of this resolution and a statement of the final assessments against each property together 

with notice of installment payment privileges to every property owner whose name appears on the 

assessment report or whose post office address is known or can with reasonable diligence be 

determined. 

      

 

Approved this 25th day of July, 2019. 

 

 

 

              

Brendan Pratt, Mayor      Attest: Cynthia Bauer, City Clerk 

 

 

 

                                                                       

 

Date of publication:     

 

 

 -2- 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 2 of 2



City Council | July 25, 2019
New Business | Item 3 | Page 1 of 1

Agenda >>               Summary >>



RESOLUTION NO:   7D-19 

FINAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING STREET AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS AND 

LEVYING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AGAINST BENEFITED PROPERTY FOR THE 2019 

HAYDEN’S ADDITION RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT AS FURTHER DESCRIBED BELOW: 

The construction will include the following street segment. 

a) Hayden Avenue, from 3rd Street East to approximately 479 feet east.

b) Garfield Avenue, from 3rd Street East to the easterly end of Garfield Avenue.

c) 4th Street East, from Daniels Avenue to Hayden Avenue.

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Altoona, Wisconsin held a public hearing in the  

Council Chambers at Altoona City Hall at 1303 Lynn Avenue at approximately 6:05 p.m. on July 25, 2019 for 

the purpose of hearing all interested persons concerning the preliminary resolution and the report of the  

Director of Public Works including the plans pertaining to the proposed improvements and construction of the 

above described assessment district in the City of Altoona for the 2019 Hayden’s Addition Reconstruction 

Project.  Items include grading, gravel, asphaltic concrete paving, concrete curb and gutter, water main and 

appurtenances, sanitary sewer and appurtenances, driveways, sidewalk, and lawn restoration. 

WHEREAS, notice of aforesaid public hearing was duly and properly published in the Eau Claire Leader 

Telegram as confirmed by the Proof of Publication on file with the City Clerk and such notice was duly and 

properly posted at City Hall; and 

WHEREAS, all persons who desired to speak at said public hearing were heard, and 

WHEREAS, the Common Council has reviewed the reports of the City Engineer and has considered all the 

comments of persons appearing at the public hearing; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Common Council of the City of Altoona, Wisconsin, 

determines as follows: 

1. The report of the City Engineer pertaining to the construction of the above described public

improvements, including the plans and specifications and assessments as given, is hereby adopted and

approved and available for review at City Hall.

2. The City Engineer is directed to carry out the work of such improvements in accordance with the

aforesaid report.

3. Payment, in part, for the improvements shall be made by assessing $454,457.60 of the estimated total

project cost of $993,741.45 to property benefited as indicated in the report, provided such amount

shall be reduced if the cost of project is less than estimated, and further provided that such amount may

be increased if the cost of the project is more (but not materially more) than estimated, pursuant to

§66.60(10) and (11) Wis. Stats.

4. Assessments shown on the report represent an exercise of the police power and have been determined

on a reasonable basis and are hereby confirmed.

5. The assessments for all projects included in said report are hereby combined as a single assessment,

but any interested property owner shall be entitled to object to each assessment separately or all

assessments jointly for any purpose or purposes.

6. Assessments may be paid in full within 45 days at the time of initial billing, or, alternatively, in ten

(10) annual installments that bear an interest rate of 4.6% per year on any unpaid balance. The initial

billing is anticipated in 2020, upon project completion. The remaining payments will be placed on the

next tax roll after the paid in full due date.

City Council | July 25, 2019
New Business | Item 4 | Page 1 of 2

Agenda >>               Summary >>



 

 

7. Principal payments on assessments may be deferred for those affected property owners that meet 

criteria set forth in Chapter 3.26, City Assumption of Special Assessments, until such time as the title 

to the subject property is transferred by any means. Property owners that receive approval for a 

deferment of paying the principle will be required to make annual interest payment at a rate of 6.00% 

per year on any unpaid balance. 

 

8. The City Clerk is directed to publish this resolution as a Class I notice in the official newspaper and to 

mail a copy of this resolution and a statement of the final assessments against each property together 

with notice of installment payment privileges to every property owner whose name appears on the 

assessment report or whose post office address is known or can with reasonable diligence be 

determined. 

      

 

Approved this 25th day of July, 2019. 

 

 

 

              

Brendan Pratt, Mayor      Attest: Cynthia Bauer, City Clerk 

 

 

 

                                                                       

 

Date of publication:     

 

 

 -2- 

City Council | July 25, 2019 
New Business | Item 4 | Page 2 of 2



S.T.H. "12"

M
A

Y
E

R
 
R

O
A

D

FUTURE ROAD

ROAD A2

ROAD B

R

O

A

D

 

C

R
O

A
D

 
E

ROAD D

R

O

A

D

 

A

1

CENTERLINE

ROAD LENGTH:

A1: 410'

A2: 1,275'

C: 470'

D: 880'

E: 880'

F
I
N

L
A

N
D

 
H

O
L

D
I
N

G
 
G

R
O

U
P

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 
C

O
N

C
E

P
T

 
P

L
A

N

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
A

L
T

O
O

N
A

,
 
E

A
U

 
C

L
A

I
R

E
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
W

I

18
18

 B
RA

CK
ET

T 
AV

EN
UE

 ·
 E

AU
 C

LA
IR

E,
 W

I  
54

70
1

PH
: (

71
5)

 8
31

-0
65

4 
 ·

  
EM

AI
L:

 IN
FO

@
ES

E.
CO

EV
ER

YD
AY

 S
UR

VE
YIN

G 
& 

EN
GI

NE
ER

IN
G

City Council | July 25, 2019
New Business | Item 5 | Page 1 of 1

Agenda >>               Summary >>

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULT-FAMILY AREA 71,430 S.F. 2.46 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWMP LOT AREA 174,706 S.F. 4.01 ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12 48,229 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13 41,493 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14 42,084 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL SITES AREA 838,337 S.F. 19.25 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11 48,180 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15 41,062 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4 45,115 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3 72,739 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5 44,896 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 46,938 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 47,215 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10 48,131 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9 46,017 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8 46,022 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7 70,848 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6 45,046 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26 13,330 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27 12,408 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 28 12,408 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 29 11,616 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 30 12,296 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 31 12,284 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 32 12,379 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 33 12,379 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 21 10,747 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20 11,558 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 22 22,428 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23 12,988 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 24 17,937 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 25 16,369 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18 11,562 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19 11560 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16 11,565 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15 12,730 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14 12,845 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13 11,618 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12 11,619 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 15,612 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 18,606 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4 28,357 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5 16,008 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6 11,616 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7 11,616 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8 15,443 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9 13,905 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10 11,622 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11 11,620 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 34 12,354 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 35 12,354 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 36 12,322 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 37 12,334 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3 18,868 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17 11.563 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
37 LOT RESIDENTIAL SUB-DEVELOPMENT AREA:638,097 S.F. 14.65 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF LOT 1 22,951 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF LOT 2 19,745 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF LOT 3 19,766 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF LOT 4 19,787 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF LOT 5 25,101 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE COMMERCIAL OR MULTI-FAMILY SITES AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE DIVIDER BETWEEN ROADS A1 AND A2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRVD:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SRM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-27-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
16004

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX-XX-XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
C502A

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE PATH:L:\CIVIL 3D PROJECTS\16004 FINLAND - ALTOONA SUBDIVISION\1 BASE DRAWINGS\16004 LAYOUT12.DWG    L:\CIVIL 3D PROJECTS\16004 FINLAND - ALTOONA SUBDIVISION\1 BASE DRAWINGS\16004 LAYOUT12.DWG    



City Council | July 25, 2019
New Business | Item 6 | Page 1 of 1

Agenda >>               Summary >>



NO MATERIALS 

City Council | July 25, 2019
New Business | Item 7

Agenda >>               Summary >>



ORDINANCE 7G-19 

An ordinance of the Altoona Common Council repealing Chapter 9.44 of the Altoona 

Municipal Code “Panhandling” regulating the action of panhandling in its entirety. 

THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALTOONA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN 

AS FOLLOWS: 

Section One:  That Chapter 9.44 “Panhandling” as shown below, is hereby repealed in its 

entirety: 

Chapter 9.44 

PANHANDLING 

Sections: 

9.44.010 Purpose. 

9.44.020 Definitions. 

9.44.030 Panhandling prohibited. 

9.44.040 Aggressive panhandling prohibited. 

9.44.050 Activities consistent with direct sellers. 

9.44.060 Violation – Penalty. 

9.44.010 Purpose. 

This ordinance does not limit any persons from exercising their constitutional right to solicit 

funds, picket, protest, or engage in other constitutionally protected activity. The purpose of this ordinance 

is to ensure unimpeded pedestrian and vehicular traffic flow, to reduce traffic distractions, to maintain and 

protect the physical safety and well-being of pedestrians, and to otherwise foster a safe and harassment-

free climate in public places. 

9.44.020 Definitions. 

The following definitions apply to all following sections: 

A. Behavior shall be construed as “aggressive” if a reasonable individual is deterred from passing 

through or remaining in or near any thoroughfare or place open to the public because of concern or 

apprehension due to the following intentional behaviors: 

1. Approaching, speaking, or following a person in a manner that would cause a reasonable

person to fear; 

2. Touching another person without consent;

3. Blocking or interfering with the free passage of a person.

B. “Panhandling” means begging, soliciting, or asking for any item of value, attempting to sell or 

obtain compensation for an item or service for an amount that is at least twice its value, or an item or 

service that is already offered or available at no charge to the general public, or attempting to sell or 

obtain compensation for an item or service under circumstances that would lead a reasonable person to 

conclude that the payment is in substance a donation. 

C. “Public place” or “place open to the public” means an area generally visible to public view and 

includes streets, sidewalks, bridges, alleys, plazas, parks, driveways, parking lots, automobiles (whether 

moving or not), and buildings open to the general public including those which serve food or drink, or 

provide entertainment, and the doorways or entrances in buildings or dwellings and the grounds enclosing 

them. 

D. “Intersection” has the meaning designated in Wis. Stat. § 340.01(25). 

City of Altoona | July 25, 2019
New Business | Item 8 | Page 1 of 5

Agenda >>               Summary >>



E. An “automated teller machine” is a device linked to a financial institution’s account records 

which is able to carry out transactions, including, but not limited to, account transfers, deposits, cash 

withdrawals, balance inquiries and mortgage and loan payments. 

 

9.44.030 Panhandling prohibited. 

 It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in the act of panhandling when either the panhandler 

or the person being solicited is located at any of the following locations: 

A. At a bus stop; 

B. At an intersection; 

C. On a public sidewalk while sitting or reclining; 

D. In any public transportation vehicle or public transportation facility; 

E. In a vehicle which is parked or stopped in places open to the public; 

F. In a sidewalk café; 

G. Within 20 feet of an automatic teller machine or financial institution; 

H. On private property, except with the explicit permission of the owner. 

 

9.44.040 Aggressive panhandling prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in the act of aggressive panhandling at any location 

within the city. 

 

9.44.050 Activities consistent with direct sellers. 

 The activities of panhandlers are sometimes consistent with direct sellers (transient merchants), 

which are regulated through Chapter 5.32.  The Direct Seller’s Ordinance is to be read consistent with this 

chapter.  In the event provisions of this chapter are inconsistent with the Direct Seller’s Ordinance, the 

more restrictive provision will apply. 

 

9.44.060 Violation – Penalty. 

 Any person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter shall, upon conviction, incur a 

penalty as provided in Chapter 1.08.  (Ord 12D-15, 2015) 

 

Section Two:  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon its adoption and publication as required 

by law. 

 

Dated this     25th     day of    July ,  2019. 

 

 

CITY OF ALTOONA 

 

By:_______________________________________ 

       Brendan Pratt, Mayor 

 

 

By:_______________________________________ 

Cindy Bauer, City Clerk 

 

Approved:       

Published:       

Adopted:        

 

City of Altoona | July 25, 2019 
New Business | Item 8 | Page 2 of 5



City of Altoona | July 25, 2019 
New Business | Item 8 | Page 3 of 5



City of Altoona | July 25, 2019 
New Business | Item 8 | Page 4 of 5



City of Altoona | July 25, 2019 
New Business | Item 8 | Page 5 of 5



City Council | July 25, 2019
New Business | Item 9 | Page 1 of 7

Agenda >>               Summary >>



City Council | July 25, 2019 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 2 of 7



City Council | July 25, 2019 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 3 of 7



City Council | July 25, 2019 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 4 of 7



City Council | July 25, 2019 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 5 of 7



City Council | July 25, 2019 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 6 of 7



City Council | July 25, 2019 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 7 of 7



City Council | July 25, 2019
New Business | Item 10 | Page 1 of 1

Agenda >>               Summary >>


	Order 01 - 2019-07-25CouncilAge
	Order 02 - 2019-07-11CouncilMin
	Order 02.1 - 2019-07-19SpecialCouncilMin
	Order 03 - 2019-07-25CC SummaryFinal
	Order 04 - OldBus - Item 1 - Creekside FIP
	Order 05 - OldBus - Item 2 - Creekside CSM
	Order 06 - NewBus - Item 1 - Bartlett Ave PH Notice
	Order 07 - NewBus - Item 2 - 7C-19FinalResBartlettCTH KB-Phase2
	Order 08 - NewBus - Item 3 - Haydens Addition PH notice
	Order 09 - NewBus - Item 4 - 7D-19FinalResHaydensAddition
	Order 10 - NewBus - Item 5 - Finland Holdings Concept
	Sheets and Views
	11 by 17 PDF


	Order 11- NewBus - Item 6 - Change of Agent
	Order 12- NewBus - Item 7 - NO MATERIALS
	Order 13 - NewBus - Item 8 - 7G-19Chapter9.44PanhandlingRepealing
	Order 14 - NewBus - Item 9 - Ord 7H-19 Ch 10.20
	Order 15 - NewBus - Item 10 - Sherman Highland - The Addition Crashes



